



Document Routing and Appending Job Aid

Table of Contents

Introduction
Forms Enabled for Document Routing and Appending
Routing a Document to a Supervisor
Document Author Workflow – Creating and Submitting a Document for Approval
Approver/Supervisor Workflow – Reviewing and Accepting or Rejecting a Document
Reviewing and Accepting a Routed Document
Reviewing and Rejecting a Routed Document12
Document Author Workflow 2 – Revising and Resubmitting a Rejected Document
Appending Finalized Documents in Sage17
Recommended Workflow
Append Documents Form
Updated Reports and New View/Widgets22
Updated Reports
New View/Widgets
Troubleshooting
Document Routing
Appending a document
Final to Draft Requests for Appended Documents23

Introduction

With the move to Sage-ProviderConnect NX, additional functionality exists where certain clinical documents can be:

- Routed to a "supervisor" for co-signature/approval/review, and/or,
- Appended.

This guide will demonstrate each process and provide intended workflows for when, and when not to utilize these new Sage functions.

Document Routing is a specific function that allows the author to finalize certain forms, as configured by SAPC, and route or forward the ensuing document to a supervisor for final signature. It is the supervisor's signature that makes the document officially final and valid. Document Routing allows for a more efficient approval workflow for a supervisor's co-signature/approval, or other reasons why the author of a document may want their document reviewed.

Document Routing status can be either Final (accepted and signed by the approver/supervisor), Pending (pending review from the approver/supervisor) or Rejected (reviewed by the approver/supervisor and returned to original author for corrections). Rejected documents are automatically placed in draft status to allow for the author to make necessary changes.

When Document Routing, the term "supervisor" is used when choosing the individual to whom the routed document will be sent for review and approval. However, documents can be routed to other individuals on the document author's team/agency, for any reason. Reasons for routing may include:

- DMC or SAPC Contractual:
 - All Clinical Trainees must route all document routing enabled documents to their **supervisor** for review, approval, and co-signature.
- Agency specific:
 - The agency may require the documents of all new employees be reviewed, approved and co-signed regardless of position; or
 - Staff who do not have the necessary credential to finalize required documents (Medical Necessity Justification Progress Note & Problem List/Treatment Plan); or,
 - A document's author may want someone on their team to review and sign off on a document and document routing provides a way for that individual to send the document to a teammate for review/sign off.
 - In these three examples, the document is being routed to an individual at the agency, whether that individual is the author's actual supervisor, or another staff member at the agency who will "approve" the document.

Within this job aid the words supervisor and approver are used interchangeably, but as noted above, many documents will be routed to the author's actual agency supervisor who is required to review, approve, and co-sign the document.

The **Append Document** function will allow providers to add comments to correct/clarify a finalized document which will become part of the permanent medical record by adding "appended" comments, which will appear at the bottom of the document. Appending a document does not edit the original document. Note that if the appended correction will impact claiming of the service, such as the date of service or duration, those changes will still require the Final to Draft workflow as appended comments will not populate to any of the reports used for billing.

While there are some forms/documents that cannot be routed or appended, such as the ASAM assessments, SAPC has configured most clinical forms/documents to allow for routing, which are identified in this guide.

As a terminology reminder, the following Sage "forms," when opened, create "documents," which, when finalized, can then be routed for approval and/or be appended.

Forms Enabled for Document Routing and Appending

- 1. Discharge and Transfer Form
- 2. Drug Testing
- 3. Patient Medications
- 4. Problem List/Treatment Plan
- 5. Progress Note
- 6. Recovery Bridge Housing Discharge
- 7. Referral Connections
- 8. Service Connections Log
- 9. Youth and Young Adult Screener

Routing a Document to a Supervisor

Historically, when a document required a co-signature, as determined by DMC, SAPC or agency policy, the workflow has been to check the "Draft Ready to Submit?/Draft Complete – Ready for Finalization" box, which would populate to a report or to certain widgets within Sage.

This new document routing process will allow the author of the document to sign and finalize—in a pending approval status—then choose a supervisor to whom to send the document for final review and approval, thus eliminating the need to check the "Draft Ready to Submit?/Draft Complete – Ready for Finalization" box.

As providers begin to utilize document routing functionality, SAPC recommends that providers stop using the "Draft Ready to Submit?/Draft Complete – Ready for Finalization" box as SAPC plans on phasing out this choice in the future.

Document Author Workflow – Creating and Submitting a Document for Approval

1. To begin the routing process for any of the enabled forms, the writer of the document must first finalize and submit the document. Documents in draft cannot be routed for review. This process

is only intended for completed documents to be routed for final review and signature by a supervisor.

- Once the document is finalized, the user will be presented with a copy of the document in a tiff image for further review. The header reads "Confirm Document." Users should review the document thoroughly to ensure no corrections are needed before finalizing and sending for cosignature/approval.
 - a. While reviewing the finalized form, if needed corrections are found the user can then "Reject" the document, click "OK" in the pop-up box that appears and then the document will reopen for edits.
 - i. Once rejected, the "Final" radio button will remain checked, however, the user can place the form back in draft by clicking the Draft radio button in the Form Status field.
 - ii. All fields can be modified at this time, including dates of service.

) C' Q Q		← 1	of 2 →
		· · ·	
Date Signed: 10/01/2024 at 1543 PDT			
Form Name: Progress Note Client's Name: PCNX,CHELLIE (000162015)			- 1
Client's DOB: 01/01/2000			- 1
COUNTY OF LOS ANG	C		
1000 S FREMON			
Alhambra, CA 9			
Alhambra, CA 9			
Alhambra, CA 9			
			_
	 		_
Progress Note	 		-
Progress Note Date of Service:	 		-
Progress Note Date of Service: 10/01/2024	 		-
Progress Note Date of Service: 10/01/2024 Program:	 		-
Progress Note Date of Service: 10/01/2024 Program: Recovery Facility (1)	 		_
Progress Note Date of Service: 10/01/2024 Program: Recovery Facility (1) Service Start Time:	 		_



- 3. If no additional corrections are needed, and document Form Status is "Final" (either initially or after making corrections) **and** the document **DOES NOT** require a co-signature/approval by a supervisor:
 - a. Then the user can click "Sign" which will finalize the document as normal.



- 4. If no additional corrections are needed, and document Form Status is "Final" (either initially or after making corrections) **and** the document **DOES** require co-signature/approval by a supervisor:
 - a. Select the "Sign and Route" button which will open a new window to select the supervisor or approver.



b. Enter the name of the supervisor, last, first, in the Supervisor field, then click "Add." The person will then show in the Approver box below.

Route Document to							
Supervisor Team Ignore Search here Add Add Approver Admitting Practitioner Ignore Caseload Practitioners							
Search here							
Add							
Approver	Final Approver	Title	Name				
Ø		Supervisor	GREG SAPC SCHWARZ Psy.D. (Lic. Psychologist) (002683)				
Submit Cancel							

Note:

- Documents can be routed to multiple approvers. When a document is routed to multiple approvers, the document will remain in "pending" status until all of the individuals to whom the document was routed approve the document. For that reason, SAPC **does not recommend** that users route a document to multiple approvers.
- In addition, there is a section to add Team and a section to Add Approver with the check box options of Admitting Practitioner(s) and/or Attending Practitioner(s) as approvers. Users should **ignore** these sections and the check box choices. The Team and Add Approver with check boxes sections cannot be disabled and should not be used.
- c. With the document routed to the appropriate approver/supervisor, click "Submit."
 - i. Otherwise, clicking "Cancel" takes the user back to the Confirm Document tiff image (see above), giving the user the option to "Sign," "Sign and Route," or "Reject" again.
- d. Once Submitted, the routed document will automatically create a To Do list item entitled "Documents to Sign" on the myDay view in the My To Do's widget for the supervisor entered as the Approver.



5. The Approver/Supervisor will receive a pop-up message the next time they log into PCNX as follows:

Confirm
There are one or more new items within your Workflow Management To Do List.
ок

- 6. A new item on the Approver/Supervisor's My To Do's widget on the MyDay view of PCNX will automatically populate under Documents to Sign with a number corresponding to the number of documents that have been routed to that person.
- Documents that have been routed (in Pending or Final status) are only visible using the Console Widget Viewer, which is currently on the All Docs/Chart view, and the Client Dashboard (see section below on <u>Author Workflow 2</u> for how to view a rejected document).
 - a. After choosing the routed document from the Patient Chart Forms it will display in the Console Widget Viewer displaying
 - i. "Final" Form Status
 - ii. "Document Routing"
 - iii. "Pending" Status
 - iv. "Approvers" to whom the document has been routed.

Patient Info	Admission/Ir	ntake	Cal-OM	Financia	al Elig	ibility C	linical Documentation	D	Discharge	^	Progress Note × Progress Note ×
Authorization	(SAPC ONLY US	E)	Test Form	3						- 1	Time from Destination
Form Descrip	tion 🖨	Episo	de 🗢	Date 🖨		Time 🖨	Data Entry By 🖨		Workflow Status 🖨		Residential Group Daily Summary Only
ALL	~	ALL	~	ALL	~	ALL ~	ALL	~	ALL ~		Note: a
Progress Note	е	1 (Re	covery Inc)	10/01/202	4	-	DANIEL SZUHAY Ps (Lic. Psychologist)	sy.D.	Draft	^	If patient's preferred language is NOT English, were service: N/A
Progress Note	е	1 (Re	covery Inc)	09/18/202	4	-	DANIEL SZUHAY Ps (Lic. Psychologist)	sy.D.	Final		Was an interpreter used?: No
Progress Note	e	1 (Ree	covery Inc)	09/17/202	4	-	DANIEL SZUHAY Ps (Lic. Psychologist)	sy.D.	Final		Was a supplemental service provided in addition to the prima: No
Progress Note	e	1 (Re	covery Inc)	09/17/202	4	-	DANIEL SZUHAY Ps (Lic. Psychologist)	sy.D.	Draft		Form Status: Final
Progress Note	e	2 (CA HUM) SERV		09/16/202	4	-	DANIEL SZUHAY Ps (Lic. Psychologist)	sy.D.	Final	•	Document Routing Status: Pending
Form Spec	ific PreDisplay				H	• 1 •			32 of 32	rows	Approvers: ESTHER ORELLANA Ph.D. (Lic. Psychologist)-Supervisor (Pending)

Approver/Supervisor Workflow – Reviewing and Accepting or Rejecting a Document Reviewing and Accepting a Routed Document

- 1. To show each document that is pending review and signature, from the My To Do's widget on the MyDay view of PCNX, the Approver/Supervisor can either:
 - a. Click on "Documents to Sign" to open the review pane, or
 - b. Click on the upper left menu item under MY TO DO's,

MY TO DO'S	
I	
Documents to Sign	Additional ToDos

The supervisor can then click "Review All" to review all pending documents or click "Review" for each pending document.



- 2. Choosing "Review All" or "Review" will load the Document Preview pane with document(s) for review. The document(s) are displayed as tiff image(s).
- 3. Once opened, within the Document Preview window, the supervisor can review the tiff image of each document. Some points to consider:
 - a. The date shown in the "Documents to Sign" for each pending routed document is the date the document was signed and routed, which may be different than the Date of Service.

DOCUMENT	TS TO REVIEW			
Queue	Sort By:	Select an option	~ 0	ocument Preview
	ST (000159908) Progress Note	EP: 1	٢	5 C & &
L PsyD (Greg Schwarz	⊞ <mark>09/25.</mark>	2024	Date Signed: 09/25/2024 at 1612 PDT Form Name: Progress Note Client's Name: TEST,QIUM (000159908) Client's DOB: 10/21/2005
				COUNTY OF LOS / 1000 S FREI Alhambra, (
				Progress Note
				Date of Service:
				09/17/2024

b. When viewing the document to be signed in Document Preview, prior to signing, the Tiff image displays what the document will look like AFTER the supervisor accepts and signs it. The Tiff displayed document image will not actually populate with the approvers electronic signature, date and time until AFTER the supervisor accepts AND signs at this step.

DOCUMENTS TO REVIEW		
Queue Sort By: Select an option	~ Docum	nent Preview
QUUM TEST (ROOTS9700) EP: 1 Review: Progress Note	024	c Q Q ← 3 of Form Status: Final Electronically Signed by: GREG SAPC SCHWARZ Psy.D. (Lic. Psychologist) on 09/25/2024 at 1612 PDT Author
		Electronically Signed by: DANIEL SZUHAY Psy.D. (Lic. Psychologist) on 10/07/2024 at 1309 PDT Supervisor

- 4. When reviewing a document routed for review/signature the approver can either accept and finalize the document or reject the document to send back to the author. When rejecting the document, the supervisor will have to add comments (detailed in the next section).
- 5. To accept and sign the document:
 - a. Click "Accept" and "Sign."
 - b. Users must click "Accept" first, then click "Sign". Accepting verifies that the supervisor approves of the document as shown, while "Sign" actually applies the electronic signature.

Document Routing and Appending Job Aid – 10/15/2024

DOCUMENTS	TO REVIEW	
Queue	Sort By: Select an option	✓ Document Preview
	IDDLE PCNX (000161085) EP: 1	5 C Q Q
Yolanda (Accept	Cespedes-Knadle	Date Signed: 09/30/2024 at 1431 PDT Form Name: Patient Medications Client's Name: PCNX,DANIEL-MIDDLE (000161085) Client's DOB: 02/01/1996
		COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES SAPC 1000 S FREMONT AVE Alhambra, CA 91803
		Patient Medications
		Medication Review Date: 09/30/2024
		Program Completing Form:
		Recovery Facility (1)
		Medication 1
Cancel	Sign	Medication Name:

c. Once signed the document will be removed from the Supervisor's "Documents to Sign Icon."

Reviewing and Rejecting a Routed Document

- 1. To reject the document:
 - a. Click "Reject."

DOCUMENTS	TO REVIEW	
Queue	Sort By: Select an option	Document Preview
Review: Pati	DDLE PCNX (000161085) EP: 1 Seinent Medications Eespedes-Knadle Reject Biology Constraints Reject	5 C Q Date Signed: 09/30/2024 at 1431 PDT Form Name: Patient Medications Client's Name: PCNX, DANIEL-MIDDLE (000161085) Client's DOB: 02/01/1996 COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES SAPC 1000 S FREMONT AVE Alhambra, CA 91803
		Patient Medications Medication Review Date: 09/30/2024 Program Completing Form: Recovery Facility (1) Medication 1
Cancel	Sign	Medication Name:

b. After Rejecting, **a comment must be added**. The comment can be added in the box "Comments for Rejected." Then click "Sign." Note, that clicking "Sign" does not in fact

sign the document, rather clicking "Sign" while rejecting the document completes just the rejection process for the supervisor.

DOCUMENTS 1	TO REVIEW	
Queue	Sort By: Select an option	Document Preview
Review: Patie	DDLE PCNX (000161085) EP: 1 Image: Constraint of the second sec	 つ C Q Q Date Signed: 09/30/2024 at 1431 PDT Form Name: Patient Medications
	Indo	Client's Name: PCNX,DANIEL-MIDDLE (000161085) Client's DOB: 02/01/1996 COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES SAPC
		1000 S FREMONT AVE Alhambra, CA 91803
<u> </u>	4	Patient Medications
		Medication Review Date: 09/30/2024
		Program Completing Form: Recovery Facility (1)
Cancel	Sign	Medication 1 Medication Name:

c. If the supervisor does not add a comment before clicking "Sign" while rejecting, then another box will appear in which a comment will need to be added. Once a comment has been added, click "Ok."

? Comments for Reject	
OK Cancel	

d. Otherwise click "Cancel," which will display the following:

!	Error
	Cancelled. Comment:
	ОК

e. Clicking "Ok" will cancel the entire review/approval process and take the user back to the My To Do's widget on the MyDay view leaving the document in the supervisor's "Documents To Sign."

Document Author Workflow 2 – Revising and Resubmitting a Rejected Document

1. After the document has been rejected by the supervisor:

A new To Do item will populate on the original author's To Do's under Additional ToDo's. The Additional ToDo's contain documents that have been routed and then rejected by a supervisor AND documents that have never been routed to a supervisor and have just been left in "Draft" Form Status.

2. From the Additional ToDo's, the user can distinguish between which documents have been rejected and which have never been routed to a supervisor and remain in "Draft" Form Status by hovering the mouse over the lower-case "i" in the top right corner.



a. If the document was routed and then rejected by the supervisor, when the user hovers the mouse over the lower-case letter "i" the comments written by the supervisor when they rejected the document will be displayed:



 b. If the document was never routed for a supervisor to review/sign and was just left in "Draft" Form Status, then the words "Review Document Routing form submitted as Draft" will be displayed due to the document having been routed to the user's ToDo widget. Another way to tell an Additional ToDos is left in Draft is the name in "From" will be the name of the user instead of the supervisor who rejected the document. (see below).



- 3. From the documents in the Additional ToDo's that were routed and rejected, the user can:
 - a. Click on the "Review To Do Item," which will display the comments written by the supervisor for the rejected document (see 4 below).

Note that typically in SAPC trainings we discourage users from clicking on "Review To Do Item." However, with documents that have been routed and rejected there are only 2 ways to see comments left by the supervisor regarding the rejection, one described above by hovering the mouse over the lower-case "i" and the other by clicking on "Review to Do Item."

- b. Click on the "type" of rejected document (e.g. "Progress Note" in the example above) to be taken to the document, which will have reverted back to "Draft" Form Status for modification (see 5 below).
- 4. When the author clicks on "Review To Do Item" the author can see the comments written by the supervisor for the rejected document.
 - a. Clicking on "Discard" will close this window, sending the user back to the To Do's list.
- 5. Clicking on "Reviewed" and then "Submit" removes the document from the user's Additional ToDos list with the document remaining in draft. This may result in the document not being finalized in a timely manner **and the rejection comments will no longer be viewable.**

Set To Do Item to Reviewed *
Reviewed

a. Clicking on "View Detail" will open up a new window displaying a txt version of the document.

	Submit	Discard	
×			
To Do Information			
Date Sent : 10/03/2024	Č		
Time Sent : 02:16 PM	2		
Sent By : Yolanda Cespedes-Knadle			
Option : Progress Note			
Please edit the 2nd line of the Note section per our discussion during supervision.			
brease entry the function of the more service below on any association and the service			
Set To Do Item to Reviewed *			
Reviewed			
View Detail			-

6. By clicking on the "type" of rejected document (e.g. "Progress Note" in the example below):



the user will be taken to the document, which will have reverted back to "Draft" Form Status for modification.

ROGRESS NOTE			Draft Submit
Progress Note			
Service Detail Travel Time			
Group Detail			
Note	Was a supplemental service provided	in addition to the primary service? *	Duration of Supplementa
Supplemental/Additional Services	⊖ Yes	No No	
	Supplemental Service (select all that	apply)	
	Sign Lang./ Oral Interpreter (T10)13)	
	Interactive Complexity (90785)	_	
	Interpret Expln of Results (9088)		
		,,	
	Co-Signature Use Only - Draft Ready	to Submit?	
	Ves		
	Form Status *		
	Draft	Final	

- 7. Once corrections are made the document will have to be re-finalized, re-submitted, and re-routed back to the supervisor for approval again.
- 8. Once a document has been successfully routed and approved, the electronic signatures for both the author of the document and the supervisor/approver will show on the document in the Console Widget Viewer in All Docs/Chart view, or the Progress Note Printout.

CONSOLE WIDGET VIEWER		Ľ
Progress Note ×		
	0	
Form Status:		
Final		
Was Client Present?:		
Yes		
Electronically Signed by: CHELLIE SHAFFER Psychologist Clinical Trainee on 06/28/2024 at 0924 PDT Author		
Electronically Signed by: DANIEL SZUHAY Psy.D. (Lic. Psychologist) on 06/28/2024 at 093 PDT Supervisor	1	
 < 1 / 1 ≥ 65% - → + 3% I → B ★ 3% I → B 		
Open Record Close All Print - Append		

Appending Finalized Documents in Sage

Appending allows the user to update the content of clinical documentation easily without the need for a helpdesk ticket. With the **Append Document** function providers can add comments to correct/clarify a finalized document which will become part of the permanent medical record by adding "appended" comments, which will appear at the bottom of the document. Appending a document does not edit the original document.

If the appended correction will impact claiming of the service, such as the date of service or duration, those changes will still require the Final to Draft workflow as appended comments will not populate to any reports, including reports used for billing.

Suggested uses for appending include:

- Correcting or adding information to the content or narrative of clinical documents
- Correcting number of members in a group (as this is no longer required on a claim)

Documents that require the signature/finalization of an LPHA can only be appended by an appropriate LPHA.

Appended comments can be viewed in the Console Widget Viewer in All Docs/Chart view and Client Dashboard. Thru the Console Widget Viewer the appended comment is displayed, along with the author of the appended comment and date and time document was appended at the bottom of the document. A document can be appended multiple times.



Recommended Workflow

SAPC recommends that the user utilize the All Docs/Chart view and Console Widget Viewer to append a document since using this method is easier and when the Append Document Form opens, a number of fields will be prepopulated. This recommended workflow is detailed below.

Only documents created and finalized after the append function is enabled in Sage can be appended (TRAIN – June 2024, and anticipated in LIVE – October 21, 2024). Finalized documents are:

• Documents finalized and NOT routed for supervisor approval, or

• Documents finalized, routed for supervisor approval, and approved.

Documents in "Draft" Form Status or finalized, routed for approval but pending supervisor approval cannot be appended.

For quicker access to append documents, the user will use the All Docs/Chart view. This will prepopulate and lock all necessary information to the Append form to ensure the correct document is being appended.

- 1. From the All Doc/Chart View, choose the Clinical Document tab in the Patient Chart Forms widget.
- 2. Double click on the document the user would like to append which will display the document in the Console Widget Viewer to the right.



3. To append the document, click on "Append."

4. When the user clicks on "Append" the user will be taken to the Append Documents form with the first 5 fields prepopulated and locked from changes.

			Submit	Discard	Add to Favorites
Form Type					
Progress Note	~				
Entity					
PCNX,ESTER MIDDLE MS (160919)					٩
From Date		To Date			
09/20/2024		09/20/2024			
List of Documents					
Option: Progress Note Date Created: 09/20/2024 Time Created: 02:37PM (521)	~				
Display Document					
New Comments to Be Appended to the Original Document *					
				i C	
				٢	

- 5. Enter the appended information into the "New Comments to Be Appended to the Original Document" field, which is a required field and click on "Submit."
- 6. Prior to appending, to view the document being appended for additional review or to verify the correct document was chosen, click the "Display Document."
 - a. This will display the document, as seen below.
- 9. To close the open document, click on "Close All Documents and Exit."

APPEND DOCUMENTS FORM: PCNX, MS. ESTER MIDDLE (000160919)	
Drogroes Noto Drogroes Noto	
	0
Date Signed: 09/20/2024 at 1437 PDT Form Name: Progress Note Client's Name: PCNX,ESTER MIDDLE MS (000160919) Client's DOB: 01/01/2004	
 < 1 /1 ≥ 96% - → + 3% I → B % Ø 	
PCNX,ESTER MIDDLE MS (160919) - Progress Note-Progress Note ×	
E View	

Append Documents Form

The Append Documents form is comprised of six (6) fields, Form Type, Entity, From Date, To Date, List of Documents, New Comments to Be Appended to the Original Document. The Append Documents form allows a user to append a finalized form.

Field	Description		
Form Type (Required)	A drop-down menu of append-able forms. Not all		
	forms listed in the drop-down menu are		
	applicable. The user would only be appending the		
	forms listed on page 2 of this job aid:		
	1. Discharge and Transfer Form		
	2. Drug Testing		
	3. Patient Medications		
	4. Problem List/Treatment Plan		
	5. Progress Note		
	6. Recovery Bridge Housing Discharge		
	7. Referral Connections		
	8. Service Connections Log		
	9. Youth and Young Adult Screener		
Entity (Required)	Patient name (Last, First) or PATID		

From Date (Required)	The From Date refers to the date the document was created, not Date of Service. Choose the
	earliest creation date.
To Date (Required)	The To Date refers to the date the document was
	created, not Date of Service. Choose the latest
	creation date
List of Documents (Required)	List of Finalized documents that match the Form
	Type chosen within the From/To Dates
New Comments to Be Applied to the Original	Text field into which amended comments can be
Document (Required)	entered

When using the Append Documents form, the user will need to find the document to which the user would like to append, which involves knowing quite a bit about that document, including its creation date. For this reason, SAPC recommends appending documents utilizing the All Docs/Chart view and Console Widget Viewer.

When the user first accesses the Append Documents form the only field name in red text (Required) and for which an entry may be made is "Form Type*" (see below).

	(Submit		Discard	Add to Favorites
~					^
Form Type *	~				
					Q
From Date	To Date				
List of Documents					
Select	~				
Display Document					
New Comments to Be Appended to the Original Document *					
				Ľ	
	Form Type * Select * Entity From Date It of Documents Select Display Document	Form Type * Select x v Entity From Date To Date Disclored Documents Select v Display Document	Form Type * Select From Date To Date Ulst of Documents Select Ulst of Documents Select Ulst of Documents	Form Type * Select From Date To Date IList of Documents Select Ubit of Documents Select Display Document	From Type * Select From Date To Date To Date Elist of Documents Select Uist of Document

As a field is completed, the next field name becomes red with an asterisk (REQUIRED) and the user is then able to make a choice within that field. Below is an Append Documents form illustrating choices made for the first 5 fields.

The "List of Documents" field will display a drop-down menu of all finalized documents associated with chosen "Form Type" field within the chosen "From Date" – "To Date" range.

APPEND DOCUMENTS			Submit Discard Add to Favorites
Append Document	~		
Online Documentation	Form Type * Progress Note Entity *	×	
	TEST,QIUM (159908)	To Date *	
	01/01/2024	Interpretation	₩ 1 ()
	List of Documents * Option: Progress Note Date Created: 04/3	0/2024 Time Created: 1208 (228) 🗴 🗸	
	Display Document		
	New Comments to Be Appended to the Ori	ginal Document *	6 2

In the example above, for "Form Type" Progress Note was chosen and the document displayed in the "List of Documents" is a finalized Progress Note with a creation date of 4/30/24, which was created during the chosen "From Date" – "To Date" range.

To append the document, enter the appended information into the "New Comments to Be Appended to the Original Document" field and then click "Submit."

The documents displayed in the drop-down menu for the "List of Documents" field are listed in reverse chronological order such that the newest created documents will show up first. To view the document chosen from the "List of Documents," choose "Display Document." This gives the user the option to review the document prior to appending, see below.

Progress Note-Progress Note
Date Created: 04/30/2024 at 1208 PDT
Form Name: Progress Note
Client's Name: TEST,QIUM (000159908)
Client's DOB: 10/21/2005
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES SAPC
1000 S FREMONT AVE
 < 1 / 1 ≥ 119% - → + 2% I → B S 8
TEST,QIUM (159908) - Progress Note-Progress Note *
E View

To close the open document, click on "Close All Documents" and Exit.

Updated Reports and New View/Widgets

With document routing being enabled, 2 reports have been updated and a new View with 9 widgets has been created that displays the status of documents that are in Draft form Status and/or finalized/pending supervisor approval.

Updated Reports

- Progress Note Status Report
- Documents in Draft and for Co Signature
 - As of October 15, 2024:
 - 5 of the nine forms are populating the report:
 - Discharge and Transfer Form
 - Drug Testing
 - Patient Medications
 - Progress Notes
 - Recovery Bridge Housing Discharges
 - The following 4 forms are in development to be added to the report:
 - Problem List/Treatment Plan
 - Referral Connections
 - Service Connections Log
 - Youth and Young Adult Screener

More information can be found in the <u>Guide to Reports</u>.

New View/Widgets

- Document in Draft and for Co Signature View
 - Progress Note in Draft, Routed, Rejected 1 Month
 - o Problem List/Treatment Plans in Draft, Routed, Rejected 1 Month
 - Drug Test in Draft, Routed, Rejected 1 Month
 - Discharge/Transfer in Draft, Routed, Rejected 1 Month
 - RBH Discharges in Draft, Routed, Rejected 1 Month
 - Youth/Young Adult Screen in Draft, Routed, Rejected 1 Month
 - Patient Medication in Draft, Routed, Rejected 1 Month
 - Referral Connections in Draft, Routed, Rejected 1 Month
 - Service Connections in Draft, Routed, Rejected 1 Month

More information can be found in the <u>Guide to Widgets</u>.

Troubleshooting

Document Routing

If a document was routed to the wrong person, create a Sage Helpdesk ticket to Modify a Medical Record

1. In the Justification free text box:

Document Routing and Appending Job Aid – 10/15/2024

- o Indicate the routing needs to be reassigned, and
- Specify who the document was routed to (by name) and who it needs to be reassigned to (by name) (e.g. a supervisor is unexpectedly out and the document that requires review/signature can then be reassigned by the helpdesk)

Appending a document

Open a regular Sage Helpdesk ticket explaining the issue with appending.

Final to Draft Requests for Appended Documents

When a document that has been finalized with appended comments needs to be reverted from Final to Draft, special considerations should be considered prior to submitting and finalizing that document again.

1. After the document has been reverted from Final to Draft the appended comments will be viewable ONLY in the Console Widget Viewer in All Docs/Chart view.

P/	ATIENT CHART FORMS														CONSOLE WIDGET VIEWER	
	Patient Info Admission			ntake	MS	S Financial Elig			Clinical Documentation		ı				Progress Note ×	
Discharge Authorizatio				(SAPC ON	E) 1	Test Forms									Language in which service was provided: Cantonese	
	Form Description 🖨			Episode 🖨		Date 🖨		т	'ime 🖨	Data Entry By			Workflow Status 🖨			Was an interpreter used?: No
	ALL		~	ALL	~	ALL	~		A ~	ALL	~	ALL	~			Was a supplemental service provided in addition to the prima: Yes
	Progress Not	e		1 (Recovei Inc)	ry	09/17	/2024	-		GREG SAPC SCHWARZ Psy.D. (Lie Psychologist)	ic.	Draft		•		Supplemental Service (select all that apply): Sign Lang./ Oral Interpreter (T1013) Duration of Supplemental Service in minutes (cannot exceed t: 15
	Progress Note			4 (TARZANA TREATMENT CENTERS, INC.)		08/22/2024				Rachielle Liam		Final	al			Co-Signature Use Only - Draft Ready to Submit?: Yes
	Progress Note			1 (Recovery Inc)		06/06	06/06/2024		12	a i'r co		Final	f 52 ro	▼ ws		ADDITIONAL DOCUMENT NOTE - 10/08/2024 at 11:05 AM by Daniel Szuhay Error in group size from original note. Appending group participants from 10 to 12
				Oper		New	Record -			ır Filters					•	participants. Open Record Close All Print •

- The appended comments should be incorporated into the document prior to finalizing again.
 Important Note: User will not be able to see the appended comments on the form when they re-open it. Users will have to copy the appended comments into Word or open both the form and the console widget at the same time.
- 3. The appended comments will disappear once the document is finalized again.